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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Hindustan Zinc Alloys Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hindustan Zinc Alloys Private Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
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accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
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identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable, that:

(@

(b)

(d)

(©)

)

(h)

®

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph i(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g);

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account ;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph i(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this
report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2025;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

ili.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
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Vi.

entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
except that, audit trail feature for direct changes to data in certain database tables was enabled for
part of the year from March 03, 2025, as described in note 32 to the financial statements. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of accounting software. Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior year
has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, to the
extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective year, as stated in note 32 to the financial

statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Tridesfal Khandelwal

Partner

Membership Number: 501160

UDIN: 25501160BMOMXK3822

Place of Signature: Pune, Maharashtra
Date: April 22, 2025
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Hindustan Zinc Alloys Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we state that

(O CY
(b)
(©
(d)
(@)

i @
(b)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of

the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals during the year by
management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more noticed, in the aggregate for each
class of inventory. There are no inventories lying with third parties as at March 31, 2025.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a), (b),
(¢), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xi)

(a)

(b)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

®

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. The provisions relating to provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales tax,
service tax, duty of excise, and value added tax are not applicable to the Company. According to
the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, income tax, customs duty, cess, and other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. -

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/ further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
Reqd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016




S.R.BAtLiBOI1 & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the
Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not

. applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a), (b), (c)
and (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has
incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 854 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP

Chartered Accountarf{s

ICAI Firm Regigtrati ; /E300005

per Trid&¥lal
Partner
Membership Number: 501160

UDIN: 25501 160BMOMXK3822

andelwal

Place of Signature: Pune, Maharashtra
Date: April 22, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HINDUSTAN ZINC ALLOYS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Hindustan Zinc Alloys
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 Framework) (“COSO 2013 Criteria”) and in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively

in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Tridevl# Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 501160

UDIN: 25501160BMOMXK3822

Place of Signature: Pune, Maharashtra
Date: April 22, 2025
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HINDUSTAN ZINC ALLOYS PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 4 13,452 9,816
b) Capital work-in-progress 4A 6.477 8,891
c) Deferred tax assets (net) 23 - 206
d) Other non-current assets 5 41 28
Total Non-current assets 19,970 18,941
Current assets
a) Inventories 6 700 174
b) Financial Assets
ii) Trade receivables 7 827 162
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 243 203
iv) Other financial assets 9 26 0
c) Other current assets 5 418 1892
d) Current tax assets - 3
Total Current assets 2,214 2,434
TOTAL 22,184 21,375
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 10 10 10
b) Other equity 5,438 (992)
Total Equity 5,448 (982)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 11 8,381 13,115
ii) Lease Liabilities 15 122 =
b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23 375 -
c) Other non-current liabilities 12 1,189 1,226
Total Non-current liabilities 10,017 14,341
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings iy 3,500 5,000
ii) Lease Liabilities 15 133 s
iii) Trade payables S
a) Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 71 =
b) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than Micro Enterprises and 564 869
Small Enterprises
iv) Other financial liabilities 14 1,846 1,953
b) Other current liabilities 12 540 194
c) Current tax liabilities (net) 65 0
Total Current liabilities 6,719 8,016
TOTAL 22,184 21,375

The accompanyina notes form an intearal part of the financial statements.

As per our report on even date

For S.R. Batlibqi & Co. LLP

01003E/E300005

Tridevlal Kisandelwal
Partner
ICAI Membership No.: 501160

Date: April 22, 2025
Place: Pune

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CIN:U27320RJ2021PTC078200

Date: April 22, 2025
Place: Udaipur




HINDUSTAN ZINC ALLOYS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in Lakhs, except as stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Partioutars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Revenue from Operations

(a) Revenue 16A 27,668 1,543
(b) Other Operating revenue 16B 589 0
Total Revenue from Operations (a) + (b) 28,257 1,543
Other income 17 83 6
Total Income 28,340 1,549
Expenses:

Cost of material consumed 18 16,221 1,549
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 19 (252) (46)
Depreciation expense 20 665 202
Power and fuel 571 =
Finance costs 21 970 323
Other expenses 22 2,399 570
Total expenses 20,574 2,598
Profit/(Loss) before tax 7,766 (1,049)
Tax expense :

Current tax 23 755 -
Deferred tax charae/(credit) 23 581 (206)
Total tax expenses/(credits) 1,336 (206)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 6,430 (843)
Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income - =
Total other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 6,430 (843)
Earnings per share (nominal value of shares ¥ 10)

-Basic earnings/(loss) per share (3 ) 24 6,430 (843)
-Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (% ) 24 6,430 (843)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report on even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CIN:U27320RJ2021PTC078200

For S.R. Batlibgi & Co. LLP
Chartered Acgou

I Firm Re\str: ~: 301003E/E300005

Tridevlal andelwal
Partner

ICAI Membership No.: 501160

Date: April 22, 2025 Date: April 22, 2025
Place: Pune Place: Udaipur




HINDUSTAN ZINC ALLOYS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit/(Loss) before tax 7,766 (1,049)
Adjustments to reconcile the profit/(loss) before tax
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 665 202

Interest expense 970 321

Amortization of deferred revenue arising from government grant (29) (6)

Net (gain) on sale of financial asset investments (33) =

Interest income (12)

Net (gain)/loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 10 11
Operating loss before working capital changes 9,337 (521)
Changes in assets and liabilities

(Increase) in Inventories (526) (174)

(Increase) in Trade receivables (665) (162)

Decrease/(Increase) in Other current assets 1,448 (1,070)

Tncrease in Trade navahles (234) 865

Increase in Other current liabilities 407 77
Net cash (used) in operating activities 9,767 (985)

Income taxes (paid) during the year (net of refunds) (693) (3)
Net cash (used) in operating activities 9,074 (988)

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purcl‘1ases of Property, Plant and Equipment (including CWIP and Capital (1,034) (4,299)
Creditors)
Purchase of current investments 19,114 -
Proceeds from sale of current investments (19,148) -
Net cash (used) in investing activities (1,068) (4,299)
(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from long term borrowings 216 5,490
Repayment of long term borrowings (6,500) -
Lease liabilities paid (139)
Interest paid (1,543) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities (7,967) 5,490
Net (decrease)/increase in Cash and cash equivalents 40 203
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 203 -
243 203

Cash and cash eauivalents at the end of the vear (refer note 8)

Note:-
1. The figures in brackets indicates outflows.

2. The above cash flow has been prepared under "Indirect method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS -7) Statement of

Cash Flows.

3. Refer Note 11 & Note 15 for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report on even date

Chartered Accguntdnts
Firm Reghgtrati

For S.R. Batliboi? Co. LLP

7. 301003E/E300005

or and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N:U27320RJ2021PTC078200

Tridevlal Arun Misra
Partner Director

ICAI Membership No.: 501160 DIN: 01835605

Date: April 22, 2025

Date: April 22, 2025
Place: Udaipur

Place: Pune




HINDUSTAN ZINC ALLOYS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

a. Equity share capital

Numbers of shares

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid (in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
As at April 01, 2023 1 10
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors ~ =
Changes in equity share capital during the current year - -
As at March 31, 2024 1 10
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - &
Changes in equity share capital during the current year = =
10

As at March 31, 2025 1

b. Other equity

(X in Lakhs)

Reserve and Surplus

Particulars Total
Retained earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2023 (149) (149)
(Loss) for the vear (843) (843)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year = -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (992) (992)
Profit for the vear 6.430 6,430
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - &
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5,438 5,438
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report on even date
For S.R. Batliboj\& Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

CIN:U27320RJ2021PTC078200

Chartered Accunidgnts ‘
ICAI Firm Regi§tra 7 301003E/E300005

\

Tridevlal andelwal
Partner
ICAI Membership No.: 501160

| TV RV

Arun Misra
Director
DIN: 01835605

Date: April 22, 2025 Date: April 22, 2025
Place: Pune Place: Udaipur




Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW

Hindustan Zinc Alloys Private Limited ("HZAPL" or “the Company”)(CIN U27320RJ2021PTC078200) is a private
limited company domiciled in India and incorporated on November 17, 2021, and has its registered office at
Yashad Bhawan, Udaipur (Rajasthan). The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hindustan Zinc Limited
("Holding Company") and is engaged in manufacturing of metals and its alloys.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirement of Division II of schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule
IIT), as applicable. The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on the accrual
basis except for financial instruments which are measured at fair values (Refer note 3(I)(a) below) and the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act") (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133
of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied in all material aspects except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 22, 2025. The revision to these
financial statements is permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instances
of regulatory authorities as per the provisions of the Act.

3.(I) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e “In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability"
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses market observable data to
the extent available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company establishes appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.




Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

"Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable"

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

b) Current and non-current classification

The assets and liabilities are classified as current/ non-current based on the operating cycle, which has been
identified as 12 months.

c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (2), which is the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in Indian Rupees (2) has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs. Amounts less than 2

0.50 Lakhs have been presented as “0”.
d) Revenue recognition
(i) sale of goods

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control (as defined in Ind As 115) of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer as per the terms of contract, which usually is on delivery of the goods to
the carriers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods. Revenue is recognised net of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing sales taxes/ goods and service
tax and other indirect taxes. Revenues from sale of by-products are included in revenue.

Certain of the Company's sales contracts provide for provisional pricing based on the price on the London Metal
Exchange (LME), as specified in the contract. Revenue in respect of such contracts is recognised when control
passes to the customer and is measured at the amount the entity expects to be entitled - being the estimate of
the price expected to be received at the end of the measurement period. Post transfer of control of goods,
provisional pricing features are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ rather than Ind
AS 115 and therefore the Ind AS 115 rules on variable consideration do not apply. These ‘provisional pricing’
adjustments i.e. the consideration received post transfer of control are included in total revenue from operations
on the face of the Statement of Profit and loss. Final settlement of the price is based on the applicable price for a
specified future period. The Company’s provisionally priced sales are marked to market using the relevant forward
prices for the future period specified in the contract and is adjusted in revenue.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does
not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, with
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.




Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iii) Others

Revenue relating to insurance claims and interest on delayed or overdue payments from trade receivable is
recognized when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collection exists.

Contract assets

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required
before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section 3(g)
Financial instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does
not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

e) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Property, plant and equipment

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and
location for its intended use. Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for qualifying assets if the recognition criteria are met. Major machinery spares and parts are
capitalized when they meet the definition and recognition criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
are normally charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major
inspection and overhaul expenditure is capitalized if the recognition criteria is met.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other expenses in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Government grant related to property, plant and equipment is capitalized along with the asset that it relates to and
depreciated over the life of the primary asset.

(ii) Capital work in progress (CWIP)

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work in progress account. At the point when an asset
is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset are
capitalized in CWIP until the period of commissioning has been completed and the asset is ready for its intended

use.

Capital work in progress is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value. Depreciation is provided on straight line method over there useful lives. Based on technical
evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given below best represent the period over which the
management expects to use the asset. Management's assessment takes into account, inter alia, the nature of the
assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and
maintenance support.

Assets Useful life in years (as per Sch 1)
Buildings 30 years
Office equipment 5years
Roads 5-10years
Computers and IT equipment 3-6years
Plant and Equipment 8-40 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8-10years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

iv) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consists of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowings of the funds.

v) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

vi) Right-of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date when the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use assets are also subject to
impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (f) Impairment of non-financial assets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

vii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease
is generally not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments

{Z( ubaiPUR "m)

1% J—~

\ /S
\/iop ‘>>\§//

~
I




Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(vii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

f) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units. A cash-generating unit
(CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or group of assets.

Impairment tests are carried out annually for all assets when there is an indication of impairment. The Company
conducts an internal review of asset values annually, which is used as a source of information to assess for any
indications of impairment or reversal of previously recognized impairment losses. External factors, such as changes
in expected future prices, costs and other market factors are also monitored to assess for indications of
impairment or reversal of previously recognized impairment losses.

If any such indication exists then an impairment review is undertaken, the recoverable amount is calculated, as the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use.

Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants and does not reflect the effects of factors that may be specific to the entity and not

applicable to entities in general.

Value in use is determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset in its present form and its eventual disposal. The cash flows are discounted using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Value in use is determined by applying
assumptions specific to the Company’s continued use and cannot take into account future development. These
assumptions are different to those used in calculating fair value and consequently the value in use calculation is
likely to give a different result to a fair value calculation.

The carrying amount of the CGU is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the
CGU is determined.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss is limited to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been

recognized.
g) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets - recognition and subsequent measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient,
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or
sales of financial assets except treasury investment that require delivery of assets within a time frame established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the
forwhen_ the

da thQCompany commits to purchase or sell the asset. Treasury investments are accounted fc hen
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

amount is settled in Bank account. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are
measured at transaction price as per Ind AS 115.

For purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
- Financial assets at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A *financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
- Financial assets at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and default category for equity instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as at FVTOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets - derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amortized cost and other contractual rights to
receive cash or other financial asset

e Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost e.g., trade receivables and bank balances

e Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

1




Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial

recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are

possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of
Profit and Loss (P&L). The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

- Financial assets measured as at amortized cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities — recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

At fair value through Statement of Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are
not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

- Financial Liabilities at amortized cost (Borrowings and Trade and Other payables)

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR

amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.
Financial liabilities - derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which is financial liabilities. Changes to the business
model are expected to be infrequent. The senior management determines change in the business model as a result
of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting
period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains,
losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

h) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, the Company enters into forward currency contracts. The
Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets
when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when
the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an
unrecognized firm commitment.

Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign
currency risk in an unrecognized firm commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strat
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undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s
fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows and are assessed on an on-going basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognized in profit
or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable

to the hedged risk.

If the hedged item is derecognized, the unamortized fair value is recognized immediately in profit or loss. When an
unrecognized firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair
value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognized as an asset or liability with a
corresponding gain or loss recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in OCI in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amounts recognized as OCI are transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged transaction affects
profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognized or when a forecast sale
occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognized
as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI remains separately in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

i) Government grants, subsidies and export incentives

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Government grants, subsidies and export incentives Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized
when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii)
the grant/ subsidy will be received. When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a
systematic basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs, which they are intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred
income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset and presented
within other income. When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are
recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar
assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable
market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is
initially recognized and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between
the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the Statement of
Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to

compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in equal a mounts
over the expected useful life of the related asset and presented within other income.
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j) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs comprise direct materials, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of different categories of inventories are accounted for as

follows:

(i) Raw material, work-in-progress and finished goods (including significant by-products i.e. Zinc dross) are valued
at lower of cost and net realizable value on weighted average basis.

(ii) Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Provisions are made to cover slow moving and obsolete items based on historical experience of utilization.
k) Taxation

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction

either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.
I) Foreign currency translation

The functional currency for the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic enwronment in
which it operates. For the Company, the functional currency is the local currency of the country in whiel
operates, which is Indian Rupee (3).
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In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates
prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies and
measured at historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such
values were determined.

All exchange differences are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss except any exchange differences on
monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales
or purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

m) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“"EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above.

o) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the
applicable Ind AS.

Provisions represent liabilities for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an
outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the
discount is recognized in Statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the Balance Sheet.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit
is probable.

The Company has capital commitments in relation to ongoing capital projects which are not recognized on the
balance sheet.

p) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision-Maker i.e. board of directors of the Company.

The Company’s operations revolve around manufacturing of metal and their alloys. Considering the nature of
Company’s business, as well as based on reviews by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about

*,
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requirements of Ind AS - 108 -"Operating Segments", prescribed under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015. The Company's operations are mainly confined within India and as such there are no reportable
geographical segment.

3. (II) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New and amended standards

"The company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2024. The company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment
that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated 12
August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective
from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts.
Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as well as
to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope exceptions
will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
* A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts
The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the financial statements.

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend
Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

"The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that

relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

The amendment does not have any impact on the financial statements."

Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's
financial statements.
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(% in Lakhs)

Right to use Assets

Particulars Fr&;.eh:ld Buildings Plant and equipment Office equipment (Plant and Total

Ll equipment)
At Cost
As at April 01, 2023 167 - - - - 167
Additions® - 2,530 7,244 77 9,851
Disposals/ adjustments = = = = =
As at March 31, 2024 167 2,530 7,244 77 = 10,018
Additions® 61 3,874 - 367 4,302
Disposals/ adjustments = = = = &=
As at March 31, 2025 167 2,591 11,118 77 367 14,320
A lated depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 - - - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year - 52 148 ] = 202
Disposals/ adjustments = = = 3 = =
As at March 31, 2024 - 52 148 3 = 202
Depreciation charge for the year - 107 525 19 14 665
Disposals/ adjustments = ~ = = = e
As at March 31, 2025 - 159 673 22 14 868
Net Book Value
As at March 31, 2025 167 2,432 10,445 55 353 13,452
As at March 31, 2024 167 2,478 7,096 74 = 9,816

() All the additions in Plant Property and equipment are through CWIP (except for ROU asset)
@ During the year, addition to property plant & equipment includes finance cost capitalised of ¥ 339 lakhs (March 31,2024: ¥ 507 lakhs).

4A. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (X in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Particulars
Carrying amount of Capital work in progress 6,477 8,891

Capital work in progress(CWIP) Ageing Schedule (X in Lakhs)

K i As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of Projects in progress Total Projects in progress Total
Less than 1 year 160 160 1,242 1,242
1-2 years 554 554 7,649 7,649
2-3 years 5,763 5,763 = =
More than 3 years - - - -
Total 6,477 6,477 8,891 8,891

(X in Lakhs)

Movement of Capital work in progress during the year :
As at March 31,

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,891 13,402
Additions during the year 1,520 5,340
Capitalised during the year (3,934) (9,851)
Balance at the end of the year 6,477 8,891

CWIP completion schedule for projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan:
(X in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

CWIP To be completed in

Less than 1 vear Less than 1 vear
Zinc Dust Plant 6,477 8,891
Total 6,477 8,891

(1) The management intended to capitalise the amount in CWIP within 1 year from March 31, 2024. However, due to technical and commercial challenges, the capitalisation of the
zinc dust plant delayed and it is expected that the project will be completed within 1 year from the reporting period.

(2) During the year, the Company has capitalised the following expenses which are attributable to the construction activity and are included in the cost of capital work in progress

(CWIP). Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of such amounts.
(% in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Cost of Material Consumed 23
Finance Cost 500
Other expenses 76

Total 599
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5. OTHER ASSETS

(% in Lakhs)

AT - As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 41 28
Total 41 28
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advance given to vendors for supply of goods and services 109 0
Balance with government authorities* 289 1,884
Claims and other receivables® 20 8
Total 418 1,892
() pertains to GST receivable balances.
@ Includes export benefit receivable and prepaid expenses.
6. INVENTORIES

(% in Lakhs)

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
a. Raw materials 54 54
b. Work in Progress 287 46
c. Finished Goods‘® 1 -
d. Stores and Spares® 348 74
700 174

Total

For method of valuation of inventories, Refer note 3(I)(j)

@) Inventory held at net realizable value is Nil (March 31, 2024: ¥ 170 Lakhs). The write down on this inventory is Nil (March 31,

2024: X 30 Lakhs ) has been taken to Statement of Profit and Loss.

@ The Company follows suitable provisioning norms for writing down the value of inventories towards slow moving, non-moving
and surplus inventory. No provision for slow and non moving inventories (March 31, 2024: %13 Lakhs) has been recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(% in Lakhs)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2025 2024
Unsecured

Considered good 827 162
Total 827 162

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule*

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Undisputed - considered good
Not Due

Less than 6 months

6 months - 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

760
67
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Disputed - considered good
Not Due

Less than 6 months

6 months - 1 vear

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Total Trade receivables

* Qutstanding for above mentioned periods from the due date of receipt (except for not due)
(1) The average credit period given to customer ranges from 0 to 90 days (March 31, 2024: 0 to 90 days). Interest is charged on
trade receivables for the credit period, from the date of the invoice at 9.50% to 10.20%. (March 31, 2024: 9.50%) per annum on

the outstanding balance

(2) There are no outstanding receivables due from directors or other officers of the Company. Refer note 28 for details of related

party balances and terms and conditions.

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(X in Lakhs)
Partiaulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

Balances with banks

On current accounts 243 203

Total 243 203
For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises
the following:
Cash and cash equivalents as above 243 203

243 203

Total

9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Unsecured, Considered Good

Derivative assets (refer note 26)

Receivable from related party (refer note 28)
Total

10. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

2025 2024
24 0

2 =
26 0

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

A. Authorized equity share capital

Equity shares of ¥ 10 ( March 31, 2024: ¥ 10) each.
No. of Shares (In Lakhs)

B. Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of ¥ 10 ( March 31, 2024: ¥ 10) each.
No. of Shares (In Lakhs)

C. Equity shares held by Holding Company

Hindustan Zinc Limited
No. of Shares (In Lakhs)
% of Holding (along with nominees)

o
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D. No shares issued for consideration other than cash and no shares bought back during the period of five years
since inception date.

E. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Hindustan Zinc Limited

No. of Shares (In Lakhs) 1 1
% of Holding (along with nominees) 100% 100%
F. Details of shares held by promoters
Hindustan Zinc Limited
No. of shares issued as at the beginning of the year (In Lakhs) 1 1
Change during the year (In Lakhs) = -

1 1

No. of shares at the end of the year (In Lakhs)
% of Total Shares (along with nominees) 100%
% change during the year -

100%

G. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each equity shareholder is eligible for one vote

per share held. Each equity shareholder is entitled to dividend as and when declared by the Company. Interim dividend is paid as
and when declared by the Board. Final dividend is paid after obtaining shareholders' approval. Dividends are paid in Indian
Rupees. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all preferential amount in proportion to their shareholding.

11.BORROWINGS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

Non-current
At amortised cost
Unsecured
Loan from Related Party ) (refer note 28) 11,831 18,115
Total Non-current borrowing 11,831 18,115
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 3,500 5,000
Total (Net) 8,331 13,115
Current
At amortised cost
Unsecured
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 3,500 5,000

Total 3,500 5,000

W During the previous years, the Company had taken loan from Hindustan Zinc Limited (Immediate Holding Company) towards
funding of its capital expenditure. The total sanctioned limit of the loan is ¥ 19,190 Lakhs at a floating rate of interest of 6.25%
p.a linked with Repo rate (benchmarked) which shall be reset every 3 months from the date of first disbursement. The Loan is
drawn as and when there is fund requirement and the outstanding loan is repayable in next six equal half yearly installment of ¥
2,500 lakhs and the same has been started from September 2024. During the year, one installment of ¥ 1,500 lakhs is prepaid
and therefore the remaining maturities of currrent portion amounts to ¥ 3,500 lakhs.

The changes in liabilities arising from financing activities is on account of cash flow changes only and there are no non-cash
changes.

Movement in borrowings during the vear is provided below:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Borrowings
As at April 1, 2023 11,132
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) 6,983
Other non cash changes -
As at March 31, 2024 18,115
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) (6,284)
Other non cash changes o=
As at March 31, 2025 -1 11;‘831
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12. OTHER LIABILITIES

(% in Lakhs)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2025 2024

Non-Current

Deferred government grant® 1,189 1,226
Total 1,189 1,226

Current

Advance from customers® 482 127

Statutory liabilities™ 28 45

Deferred government grant(® 30 22
Total 540 194

™) pertains to TDS pavable balances.

@ Represents government assistance in the form of the duty benefit availed under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG)
Scheme on purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments accounted for as government grant and being amortised over the useful

life of such assets.

©) Advance from customers are contract liabilities and include amounts received under short term supply agreements. As these
are contracts that the Company expects, and has the ability, to fulfil through delivery of a non-financial item, these are recognised
as advance from customers and will be released to the income statement as goods are delivered under the agreements. The
amount of such balances as of April 01, 2024 was % 105 lakhs. Changes in contract liabilities are either receipt of fresh advances

or revenues recognised as detailed in note 16(A) .

13. TRADE PAYABLES

(X in Lakhs)
Partlculars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 71 -
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than Micro Enterprises
. 564 869
and Small Enterprises*
Total 635 869

* % 315 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 767 lakhs) out of above is relating to related parties. Refer note 28 for details of related party

balances and terms and conditions.

Trade payables Ageing Schedule

(X in Lakhs)

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

Undisputed dues- Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

Unbilled Dues 39
Less than 1 year 33
1-2 years
2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total® 71

Undisputed dues- Other than Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises

Unbilled Dues 151
Less than 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years
Total®

W Outstanding for above mentioned periods from the date of transcation (execpt for unbilled dues).
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The disclosures relating to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises have been furnished to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of the intimation received from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. There is no interest paid/payable as at March 31, 2025 (March 31,2024: Nil).

(Z in Lakhs)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2638 2024
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year.
i)  Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 71 =
ii) Interest due on above = =
iii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section
16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the _ -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during
each accounting year.
iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the _ _
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.
v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the ) .
end of each accounting year.
vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the F =
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section
23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.
14. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

Derivatives - Liabilities (refer note 26) 5 13
Capital Creditors 1,667 1,736
Due to related party (refer note 28) 108 217
Deposits from vendors 19 0
Other liabilities 47 0

Total 1,846 1,953

15. LEASE LIABILITIES

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

Lease Liability against ROU assets:
Non-current
Current

Total

(a) Following are the amounts recognised in Profit & Loss account :

122
133

255

(% in Lakhs)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2025 2024
a) Depreciation & amortization expense for right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 14 -
b) Interest expense on lease liabilty (refer note 21) 28 -
c) Expense relating to short-term leases - =
Total amount recognised 42 uyg \
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(b) The movement in lease liabilties is as follows:

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
a) Opening balance -
b) Additions (refer note 4)* 367
c) Interest Accured * 28
d) Repayments (Principal & interest)** 139
Total 255

(c) Lease liabilties carry an effective interest rate of 8.75%

(d) The maturity analysis of lease liabilites is disclosed in note 26
*Additions and interest accured in lease liabilities are non-cash items

** Repayments are actual cash outflows on account of lease obligations
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16A REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Sale of products
Total Revenue )

27,668

1,543

27,668

1,543

() Revenue is shown exclusive of GST and other indirect taxes, as these collections are not an inflow on entity's own account, rather it is

collected on behalf of government authorities.

The above revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2025 comprises of revenue from contracts with customers of ¥ 28,933
lakhs (March 31, 2024: 1,543 lakhs) and a net loss on mark to market of ¥ 1265 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 20 lakhs) on account of
gains/losses relating to sales fully priced during the year and marked to market gains/losses relating to sales that were provisionally
priced as at the end of the year. Entire revenue from contract with customers is recorded at a point in time and includes ¥ 127 lakhs
(March 31, 2024: Nil) for which contract liabilities existed at the beginning of the year and contract liabilties at the end of the year
amounts to ¥ 482 lakhs. Majority of the Company's sales are against advance or are against letters of credit/ cash against documents/
guarantees of banks of national standing. Where sales are made on credit, the amount of consideration does not contain any significant

financing component as payment terms are within three months.

16B OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Sale of scrap and residuals 561 =
Export incentives 25 &
589 -

Total

17. OTHER INCOME

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Net gain on sale of current investments 33 -
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 9 =
Amortization of deferred revenue arising from government grant 29 6
Interest on other financial assets measured at amortised cost* 12 0
83 6

Total
*Includes Interest from customers

18. COST OF MATERAL CONSUMED

(Z in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Opening inventory (refer note 6)
Add: Purchase

Less: Closing inventory (refer note 6)
Cost of materials consumed

54 -
16,221 1,603
(54) (54)
16,221 1,549
LOY,
\\\;ﬂ_ S,o
\, ’
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

19. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Opening inventory
Finished goods

Work in progress

Total

Closing inventory
Finished goods

Work in progress

Total

Changes in Inventory

20. DEPRECIATION EXPENSES

(R)

(B)
(A- B)

46 -
46 =
11 g
287 46
298 46
(252) (46)

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments (refer note 4) 665 202
Total 665 202
21. FINANCE COSTS

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Interest on financial liabilites at amortised cost 952 321
Other interest 6 -
Bill discounting charges 7 =
Bank charges 2 2
Other finance costs 3 =
970 323

Total

(1) Interest rate of 8.75% was used to determine the amount of specific borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation with respect of
qualifying assets for the year ended March 31,2025 (March 31, 2024: 8.75%) refer note 4A(1).

(2) Interest on income tax is ¥ 6 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nil).

(3) Interest on financial liabilities at amortised cost includes interest expenses on lease liabilities is ¥ 27 lakhs (March 31, 2024 :Nil).

22. OTHER EXPENSES

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Repairs and Maintenance:

- Plant and equipment
Other manufacturing and operating expenses
Conveyance and travelling expenses
Manpower charges
Payment to auditors™
Legal and professional expenses
Net loss on foreign currency transactions

Carriaae outward
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

M Remuneration to auditors:
- Audit fees
Total

1,060 84
651 131
35 9
20 7
297 242
18 15
7 35
= 11
177 1
133 35
2,399 570
18
18




Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

23. INCOME TAX EXPENSES
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are indicated below:

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

(a). Tax charge recognised in Profit and Loss
Current tax:
Current tax on profit for the year 755 -
Adjustment in respect of earlier years = =
Total Current tax 755 -
Deferred tax:
Reversal and origination of temporary differences 581 (206)
Adjustment in respect of earlier years . &
Total Deferred tax charge/(credit) ’ 581 (206)
Tax expense/ (credit) for the year 1,336 (206)
Effective income tax rate (%) 17.21% 20%

(b) Statement of other comprehensive income

Defered tax charge/(credit) on :
Other comprehensive income
Total

(c) A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits before tax at the statutory income tax rate to

recognized income tax expense for the year is as follows:
(% in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Accounting profit before tax (after exceptional item) 7,766 (1,049)
Statutory income tax rate 17.16% 17.16%
Tax at statutory income tax rate 1,333 (180)
Deferred tax assets on brought forward losses = (26)
Impact of tax rate differences on Other income 3 -
Total 1,336 (206)
(d) significant components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:
(X in Lakhs)

Particular For the year ended For the year ended

iy March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Property, plant and equipment, Exploration and evaluation and
intangible assets due to temporary differences (375) 206

Utilisation of tax losses of previous years

Deferred Tax Assets (net) (375)
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24. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(X in Lakhs)
Particulurs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Basic earnings per share (3) 6,430 (843)
6,430 (843)

Diluted earnings per share (%)

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as
follows:

Profit after tax (in ¥ Lakhs) 6,430 (843)
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings/(loss) for the

year (in ¥ Lakhs) 6,430 (843)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Number in Lakhs) 1 1
Nominal Value per share (in %) 10 10

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

a. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for ¥ 2,604 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥

2,303 lakhs).

b. Other Commitments - Export obligations

The Company has export obligations of ¥ 7,524 lakhs (Out of which exports sales of 1079 lakhs has been made during the current
year) (March 31, 2024 % 7,524 lakhs) on account of concessional rates of import duties paid on capital goods under the Export
Promotion Capital Goods Scheme enacted by the Government of India (which is required to be fulfilled over the next six years from
purchase as of March, 2025 three years have lapsed since the license was purchased in 2022). If the company is unable to meet these
obligations, its liabilities would be ¥ 1,254 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 1,254 lakhs), plus applicable interest. This liability is backed by the
bank guarantees executed in favour of Customs department amounting to ¥ 1,257 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 1,257 lakhs).




Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional informat'on on
the balance sheet. Details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument are disclosed in note 2 & 3 .

Financial assets and liabilities:

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:
(% in Lakhs)

Fair Value through

Fair Value . .
Particulars through profit Ptigg . Amortized Cost protal carrying Total falr
comprehensive value value
and loss h
income

As at March 31, 2025
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 243 243 243
Trade receivables - - 827 827 827
Other financial assets 24 - 2 26 26
Total 24 - 1,072 1,096 1,096
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 11,831 11,831 11,831
Lease Liabilities - - 255 255 255
Trade payables - - 635 635 635
Other financial liabilities 5 - 1,841 1,846 1,846
Total 5 - 14,562 14,567 14,567
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 203 203 203
Trade receivables - - 162 162 162
Total - - 365 365 365
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 18,115 18,115 18,115
Trade payables - - 869 869 869
Other financial liabilities - - 1,953 1,953 1,953
Total - - 20,937 20,937 20,937

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Fair value of non current financial liabilities are estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using a discount rate
equivalent to the risk free rate of return adjusted for the appropriate credit spread.

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings. Forward foreign currency contracts are valued using valuation technique with market observable
inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques for such derivatives include forward pricing using present value
calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates, yield curves of the respective currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, interest rate
curves and forward rate curves of the underlying currency (a level 2 technique). Commodity contracts are valued using the
forward LME rates of commodities actively traded on the listed metal exchange i.e. London Metal Exchange, United Kingdom (U.K.)
[a level 2 technique].The changes in counterparty risk had no material effect on the hedge effectiveness assessment for the
derivatives designated in hedge relationship and the value of the other financial instrument recognised at fair value.

Fair value hierarchy )
The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by measurement hierarchy. The different levels have

been defined below:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.,
as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Quantitative disclosures on fair value measurement hierarchy:
(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
As at March 31, 2025
Financial Assets
At fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives financial assets*
Forward foreign currency contracts
Commodity contracts
Investments
Total = 24

Financial Liabilities
At fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives financial liabilities*
Forward foreign currency contracts - 5
Commodity contracts -
Total - 5 -

As at March 31, 2024

Financial Assets
At fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives financial assets*
Forward foreign currency contracts - 0
Commodity contracts -
Total - 0 -

Financial Liabilities
At fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives financial Liabilities*
Forward foreign currency contracts - 0
Total - 0 -

* Refer section - "Derivative financial instruments"
The below table summarises the fair value of borrowings which are carried at amortised cost as at March 31, 2025 and March 31,

2024:

(% in Lakhs)
Financial Liabilities Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
As at March 31, 2025
Borrowings - 11,831 -
Total - 11,831 -
As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings - 18,115 -
Total - 18,115 =

There is no financial instrument which is classified as level 3 during the year. There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 during the year.

Risk management framework

Risk management

The Company’s businesses are subject to several risks and uncertainties including financial risks. The Holding Company’s
documented risk management polices act as an effective tool in mitigating the various financial risks to which the business is
exposed to in the course of their daily operations. The risk management policies cover areas such as liquidity risk, commodity price
risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, counterparty and concentration of credit risk and capital management. Risks are
identified through a formal risk management programme with active involvement of senior management personnel and business
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The risk management process is coordinated by the Management Assurance function of the Holding company and is regularly
reviewed by the Risk Management Committee of the Holding company, which meets regularly to review risks as well as the
progress against the planned actions. Key business decisions are discussed at the periodic meetings of the Executive Committee of
the Holding company. The overall internal control environment and risk management programme including financial risk
management is reviewed by the Board of directors of the Company.
The risk management framework aims to:
- improve financial risk awareness and risk transparency

identify, control and monitor key risks

identify risk accumulations

provide management with reliable information on the Company’s risk situation

improve financial returns

Treasury management

Holding company’s treasury function provides services to the company's business, co-ordinates access to domestic financial
markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which
analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk .

Treasury management of the company as managed by Holding company's treasury function focuses on capital protection, liquidity
maintenance and yield maximization. The treasury policies are approved by the Board of the Holding company and adherence to
these policies is strictly monitored at the Executive Committee meetings of the of the Holding company . Day-to-day treasury
operations of the Company are managed by the Holding company's finance team within the framework of the overall Holding

Company'’s treasury policies.

The Company uses derivative instruments as part of its management of exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates.The Company does not acquire or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The Company
does not enter into complex derivative transactions to manage the treasury and commodity risks. The treasury derivative
transactions are normally in the form of forwards and these are subject to the Holding Company’s guidelines and policies.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Commodity risk

The Company is exposed to the movement of base metal commodity prices on the London Metal Exchange. Any decline in the
prices of the base metals that the company produces and sells will have an immediate and direct impact on the profitability of the
businesses. As a general policy, the company aims to achieve the monthly average of the commodity prices for sales realization.
Hedging is used primarily as a risk management tool. The hedging activities are subject to strict limits set out by the Board and to
a strictly defined internal control and monitoring mechanism. Decisions relating to hedging of commodities are taken at the
Executive Committee level of Holding company and with clearly laid down guidelines for their implementation by the company.

Whilst the Company aims to achieve average LME prices for a month or a year, average realized prices may not necessarily reflect
the LME price movements because of a variety of reasons such as uneven sales during the year and timing of shipments.

Financial instruments with commaodity price risk are entered into in relation to following activities:
e economic hedging of prices realized on commodity contracts.
The sales prices of zinc is linked to the LME. The Company also enters into hedging arrangements for Zinc metal sales to realize

month of sale LME prices.

Financial risk
The Holding Company’s Board approved financial risk policies comprise liquidity, currency, interest rate and counterparty risk. The

Company does not engage in speculative treasury activity.
a. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds using cash flow
forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of its financial investments, committed funding and projected cash flows
from operations. The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost
effective and reliable manner and to manage its capital structure. A balance between continuity of fundmgf é’r?i\»ff‘exll\){llty is

maintained through continued support from lenders, trade creditors as well as through issue of equity shares./ SJ L 5 ,p/
S/ A
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The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the
Company.

(X in Lakhs)
Payment due by vears <1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
As at March 31, 2025
Trade and other payables 2,481 - - - 2,481
Lease Liabilities* 272 261 - = 534
Borrowings* 4,481 9,125 a - 13,606
Total 7,234 9,387 - - 16,621
As at March 31, 2024
Trade and other payables 2,822 - - - 2,822
Lease Liabilities - - - - =
Borrowings* 5,000 10,000 115 - 57%15
Total 7,822 10,000 3,115 - 20,937

*Includes Non-current borrowings, current maturities of non-current borrowings, committed interest payments on borrowings and
lease liabilities and interest accrued on borrowings and lease liabilities.

The Company had access to following funding facilities. (% in Lakhs)
Funding facility Total facility Drawn Undrawn
As at March 31, 2025

Less than 1 year 25,190 13,088 12,102
More than 1 year - a -
Total 25,190 13,088 12,102

As at March 31, 2024

Less than 1 year 25,190 18,115 7,075
More than 1 vear - - -
Total 25,190 18,115 7,075

b. Foreign currency risk

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may have an impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss, where any transaction
references more than one currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

The Company uses forward exchange contracts, to hedge the effects of movements in exchange rates on foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities. The sources of foreign exchange risk are outstanding amounts payable for capital goods
denominated in foreign currency.These transactions are denominated in US dollars. The policy of the Company is to determine on
a regular basis what portion of the foreign exchange risk on financing transactions are to be hedged through forward exchange
contracts and other instruments. Short-term net exposures are hedged progressively based on their maturity. A more conservative
approach has been adopted for project expenditures to avoid budget overruns. Longer term exposures, are normally unhedged.
The hedge mechanisms are reviewed periodically to ensure that the risk from fluctuating currency exchange rates is appropriately
managed. The following analysis is based on the gross exposure as at the reporting date which could affect the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The below table summarises the foreign currency risk from financial instrument and is partly mitigated by some of the
derivative contracts entered into by the Company as disclosed under the section on “Derivative financial instruments.”

The carrying amount of the Company's financial assets and liabilities in different currencies is as follows: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
. . Financial . - Financial
Currency exposure Financial Asset Liability Financial Asset Liability
US Dollar - 834 - 834

The Company's exposure to foreign currency arises where a Company holds monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency different to the functional currency of the Company, with US dollar being the major non-functional currency. The value of
a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rate, liquidity and other
market changes.

The results of Company operations may be affected largely by fluctuations in the exchange rates between the Indian Rupee,
against the US dollar. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated by the aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate
exposure with a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rate shift in the currencies by 10% against the functional curr of the
respective entities.
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Set out below is the impact of a 10% strengthening/weakening in the INR on pre-tax profit/(loss) arising as a result of the
revaluation of the Company’s foreign currency financial assets/liabilities:
(% in Lakhs)
Effect of 10%
Total exposure strengthening/weakening of
INR on pre-tax profit/(loss)

For the ?ar ended For the year For the year For the year

Particulars Marcehy31 rz;zs ended March ended March ended March
’ 31,2024 31, 2025 31,2024

US Dollar 834 834 83 83

c. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rate.The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on long-term borrowings. The borrowings of the Company are
denominated in Indian Rupees with floating rates of interest. The floating rate is linked to Bank’s base rate. The outstanding
borrowings are reviewed by appropriate levels of management on frequent basis. The Company invests cash and liquid
investments in short-term deposits and debt mutual funds, some of which generate a tax-free return, to achieve the Company’s
goal of maintaining liquidity, carrying manageable risk and achieving satisfactory returns. Floating rate financial assets are largely
mutual fund investments which have debt securities as underlying assets. The returns from these financial assets are linked to
market interest rate movements; however the counterparty invests in the agreed securities with known maturity tenure and return
and hence has manageable risk.

The exposure of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

(Z in Lakhs)
. - - Non-interest

Particulars Total Floating rate Fixed rate P
As at March 31, 2025
Financials assets 1,096 i - 1,096
Financial liabilities 14,567 11,831 255 2,481
As at March 31, 2024
Financials assets 365 = - 365
Financial liabilities 20,937 18,115 - 2,822

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt
obligations. Any increase in interest rates would result in a net loss and any decrease in interest rates would result in a net gain.
The below analysis gives the impact of a 0.5% to 2.0% change in interest rates on floating rate liabilities on (loss) and equity and
represents management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

The impact of change (increase/(decrease)) in interest rate of 0.5%, 1.0% and 2.0% on the loss for the period ended March 31,
2025 is ¥ 59 lakhs, ¥ 118 lakhs and ¥ 237 lakhs and for year ended March 31, 2024 is ¥ 83 lakhs, ¥ 166 lakhs and ¥ 332 lakhs.

d. Counterparty and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
The Company has adopted a policy of obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The Company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments and derivative financial instruments. Credit risk on receivables is limited as almost all credit sales are against letters
of credit and guarantees of banks of good financial repute.

Moreover, given the nature of the Company’s business, trade receivables are spread over a number of customers with no
significant concentration of credit risk.Therefore, the Company does not expect any material risk on account of non-performance
by any of the Company’s counterparties.

For short-term investments, counterparty limits are in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counterparty. For
derivative and financial instruments, the Company attempts to limit the credit risk by only dealing with reputable banks and
financial institutions having high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Defined limits are in place for
exposure to individual counterparties in case of mutual funds schemes and bonds.

The carrying value of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit
risk as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are ¥ 1,096 lakhs and ¥ 365 lakhs respectively.
None of the Companys cash equnvalents, |nclud|ng time deposnts with banks, are past due or impaired. Regardmg trade and other
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Of the year end trade receivables, loans and other financial assets, following balances were past due but not impaired as at March
31. 2025 and March 31. 2024:

. As at March As at March
Partieulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Neither impaired nor past due 786 162
Past due but not impaired - -
Less than 1 month
Between 1 to 3 months
Between 3 to 12 months 67

Greater than 12 months . =
Total 853 162

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with Reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditions of business.
These terms and conditions are determined on a case to case basis with reference to the customer’s credit quality and prevailing
market conditions. Receivables that are classified as ‘past due’ in the above tables are those that have not been settled within the
terms and conditions that have been agreed with that customer.

The credit quality of the Company’s customers is monitored on an on-going basis and assessed for impairment where indicators of
such impairment exist. The solvency of the debtor and their ability to repay the receivable is considered in assessing receivables
for impairment. Where receivables have been impaired, the Company actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and
enforce compliance with credit terms.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company does not acquire or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The Company does not
enter into complex derivative transactions to manage the treasury risks. Treasury derivative transactions are normally in the form
of forward contracts and these are subject to the Company guidelines and policies.

All derivative financial instruments are recognized as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and measured at fair value based on
quotations obtained from financial institutions or brokers. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument
depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation.

The fair values of all derivatives are separately recorded in the balance sheet within current assets and liabilities. Derivatives that
are designated as hedges are classified as current depending on the maturity of the derivative.

The use of derivatives can give rise to credit and market risk. The Company tries to manage credit risk by entering into contracts
with reputable banks and financial institutions. The use of derivative instruments is subject to limits, authorities and regular
monitoring by appropriate levels of management. The limits, authorities and monitoring systems are periodically reviewed by
management and the Board of the Holding Company. The market risk on derivatives is mitigated by changes in the valuation of
the underlying assets, liabilities or transactions, as derivatives are used only for risk management purposes.

Non-qualifying/economic hedges

Non-qualifying hedges relates to commodity price risk and foreign currency exposure.The Company enters into forward foreign
currency and commodity contracts (for the year ended March 31, 2025) which are not designated as hedges for accounting
purposes, but provide an economic hedge of a particular transaction risk or a risk component of a transaction. Fair value changes
on such forward contracts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The fair value of the Company’s derivative positions recorded under derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities are

as follows:
(X in Lakhs)

Derivative financial instruments As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Current
Non - qualifying hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts - 5 - 0
Commodity contracts 24 = = -

Total 24 5 =~
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Disclosures of Non qualifying Hedge:
A. The following are the outstanding forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding as at

year end

(In Lakhs)
. Indian Cross
Currency Foreign currency Rupees Buy / Sell Currency
As at March 31, 2025
uUsb 11 967 Buy INR
(In Lakhs)
. Indian Cross
Currency Foreign currency Runcd Buy / Sell Currency
As at March 31, 2024
uUsb 11 931 Buy INR

B. All derivative and financial instruments acquired by the Company are for hedging purposes.

Zinc forwards/futures (sale)/buy for (430) MT (2024: Nil)

C. There are Nil unhedaed foreian currencv exposure as on March 31. 2025 (March 31. 2024: Nil)

27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from previous year. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term
operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are currently met through a
mixture of equity and other short term/long term borrowings. The Company believes that it will able to meet all its current
liabilities on timely manner.The Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
(equity + net debt). Net debt are non-current and current debt as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and
current investments. Equity comprises all components including other components of equity. The Company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirement.

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8) 243 203
Total cash (a) 243 203
Non Current borrowings (refer note 11) 8,331 13,115
Current borrowings (refer note 11) 3,500 5,000
Total debt (b) 11,831 18,115
Net debt (c = (b-a)) 11,588 17,912
Equity (d) (See Statement of changes in Equity) 5,448 (982)
Total Capital (e = c+d) 17,036 16,930

Gearing ratio(times) (c/e) 0.68
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28. RELATED PARTY

a. List of related parties:

(i) Holding Companies:

Hindustan Zinc Limited (Immediate Holding Company)
Vedanta Limited (Intermediate Holding Company)

Vedanta Resources Limited (Intermediate Holding Company)
Volcan Investments Limited (Ultimate Holding Company)

(ii) Key management Personnel:
Arun Misra (Director)
Chendurpandian Chandru (Director)

b. Transactions with Related Parties:
The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company, for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

are as follows:
(% in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Nature of transactions ended March ended March
31. 2025 31.2024

Borrowings taken during the year

Hindustan Zinc Limited 216 6,983
Total 216 6,983
Repayments made during the year
Hindustan Zinc Limited 6,500 -
Total 6,500 -
Interest on Borrowings
Hindustan Zinc Limited (refer note 4 & 21) 1,424 1,298
Total 1,424 1,298
Other expenses and reimbursements
Hindustan Zinc Limited 331 362
Total 331 362
Sale of Goods
Hindustan Zinc Limited 561 -
Total 561 -
Letter of Comfort Obtained/Bank Limits assigned
Hindustan Zinc Limited 6,600 6,600
Total 6,600 6,600
Purchase of Goods & Services
Hindustan Zinc Limited 16,604 1,741
Vedanta Limited 1,110 74
Total 17,714 1,815
The balances payable as at year end: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Payable to
Hindustan Zinc Limited- Borrowinas 11.831 18.115
Hindustan Zinc Limited- Interest 78 -
Hindustan Zinc Limited - Trade payable 315 767
Hindustan Zinc Limited- Others 30 217
Total 12,254 19,099
The balances receivable as at year end: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024
48 -

Hindustan Zinc Limited- Trade Receivable
Vedanta Limited

Total




Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

c. Terms and conditions of related party transactions:
The transactions from related parties are assessed to be at arm’s length by the management. Outstanding balances at the year-

end are unsecured and interest free, except for borrowings taken, and settlement occurs in cash. Refer note 12(1) for terms and
conditions for loans from related parties. There have been no other guarantees/Letter of comfort provided or received from any

related party receivables or payables except as disclosed in note (b) above.

29. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s operations revolve around manufacturing of metal and their alloys. Considering the nature of Company’s business,
as well as based on reviews by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resource allocation and performance
measurement, there is only one reportable segment in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 108 -"Operating Segments",
prescribed under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Company's operations are mainly confined within
India and as such there are no reportable geographical segment.

The company has earned more than 10% of it's total revenue from one of it's customer amounting to Rs. 9176 lakhs during the

year.
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30. RATIO ANALYSIS AND ITS ELEMENTS"

% Variance*

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current  Liabilities  (excluding
Current ratio Current Assets current maturities of long term 0.69 0.81 (15%)
borrowing)
Debt [Debt is long term
9 ’ : borrowing (current & non " . o
Debt- Equity Ratio current portion) and Short Shareholder’s Equity 2.17 (18.44) (112%)
Term Borrowing]
Earning before Interest, Tax, igpest Expense on long Jggy
De ret?iation & Amortilsatior; and short term borrowing during
Debt Service Coverage ratio p : the period + Scheduled principal 1.17 (0.40) 193%
(EBITDA) and  exceptional
; repayment of long term
items < .
borrowing during the year
Net Profit/(loss) after tax
Return on Equity ratio before exceptional items(net Average Shareholder’s Equity 288% -150% (291%)
of tax)
Revenue from  operations
(including  other  operating
. income) - Earning before
< = 4 83%
Inventory Turnover ratio Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Average Inventory 43.32 23.70 o
Amortisation (EBITDA) and
exceptional items
Revenue from operations
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (including Other operating Average Trade Receivable 57.14 19.00 201%
income)
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Total Purchases Average Trade Payables 25.87 5.19 405%
Revenue from operations  ORER TR L CTeL g
i 1 i i i k% *Xk k%
Net Capital Turnover Ratio glncludlng Other operating current maturities of long term
income) +
borrowina
Net Profit after tax (PAT) Revenue from operations
Net Profit ratio before exceptional items(net (including Other operating 22.76% -54.63% (142%)
of tax) income)
Average Capital Employed
. . Capital Employed= Net Worth +
Earnings before interest and rov,"nept [Debt is long term 50.34% -5.14% (1080%)

Return on Capital Employed

taxes

borrowing (current & non current
portion) and Short  Term
Borrowinal

Return on Investment

Interest (Finance Income)

Average Investments

** Working Capital is negative

*Reason for Variance more than 25%
(i) Debt - Equity ratio - Debt-Equity ratio is postive mainly on account of higher shareholder's equity and lower inter company borrowinas.

(i) Debt - Service Coverage Ratio -Debt Service Coverage Ratio is positive mainly on account of higher earnings and repayment of borrowings
(iii) Return on Equity - Return on Equity is positive on account of higher net profit during the year.

(iv) Inventory Turnover Ratio - Inventory turnover ratio is higher on account of higher purchases during the year
(v) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio - Trade reeivable turnover ratio is higher on account of higher sales during the year

(vi) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio - Trade Payable Turnover Ratio is higher on account of increase in purchases during the year
(vii) Net Profit ratio - Net Profit ratio is higher in current year on account of higher profits made during the year.

(viii) Return on Capital Employed - Return on Capital Employed is lower mainly on account of higher inter company borrowings taken during the year for capital expenditure.

@ Ratios are fluctuating mainly on account of the company being in its nascent stage and higher inter company borrowings taken by the company in previous year towards

funding of its capital expenditure.
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